
 
 
 

 
 
 

      
   27 June 2016 

 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Tuesday, 5 July 2016 

beginning at 
12:00 pm 

in the 
Bursledon Windmill, Windmill Lane, Bursledon SO31 8BG 

 
TO: Councillors Bicknell, Irish and Mrs Sollitt 

 County Councillors Grajewski, Lyon and Kyrle 
Tim Kelly 
Christine Taylor 

Hampshire Cultural Trust 
Hampshire Cultural Trust 

Jean Roberts-Jones One Community 
Guy Riddoch Area Co-ordinator 

 
Staff Contact: Amy Thorne, Democratic Services Officer  

Tel: 023 8068 8361; Email: amy.thorne@eastleigh.gov.uk  

   

 
RICHARD WARD 

Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. Apologies     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
3. Curator's Report    (Pages 5 - 14) 
 
4. Finance Report    (Pages 15 - 22) 
 
5. Date and Venue of Next Meeting     
 
 
 

 

Eastleigh House 
 Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 23 February 2016  (10:30 am – 11:40 am) 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Representing Eastleigh Borough Council - Councillors Bicknell, Irish, and Mrs 
Sollitt  
 
Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillor Kyrle and Grajewski 
 

 Tim Kelly - Hampshire Cultural Trust 
   Erica Munro                                - Hampshire Cultural Trust 
   Janet Wildman                            - Hampshire Cultural Trust 
  Jean Roberts-Jones - One Community
 Guy Riddoch - Area Co-ordinator 
  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Martin Lyon 
 

1. MINUTES OF MEETING 10 NOVEMBER 2015 
 
 The Minutes of the meeting held on 10 November 2015 were agreed as a 

correct record. 
 
2. CURATOR'S REPORT 
 
 Tim Kelly, Hampshire Cultural Trust (HCT), began by reporting that he was 

very sad to announce that not only was Erica Munro leaving HCT for 
pastures new but that Janet Wildman was retiring in a few weeks. Both 
ladies would be a huge loss to HCT and sorely missed. Processes were in 
place to find replacements and it was hoped that if Janet could be 
persuaded, she would continue to work for HCT on an ad-hoc basis. 
 
In handing over the presentation to the museum’s Curator, Erica Munro then 
added that she had secured a position in the prestigious exhibitions section 
at Bletchley Park, so this would be her last meeting at Eastleigh.  
 
Erica explained that the winter activity had seen an increase in visitor 
numbers at the museum which was good news. It had benefitted from 
passers-by during the Christmas shopping period as well as a series of high 
quality exhibitions. 
 
Several exhibitions had taken place recently including ‘Aerofilms: Britain 
from above’ which had run for a couple of months, and ‘Love Collecting’ 
which was on until 19 March 2016 and ran alongside the HCT’s newly 
launched website www.lovecollecting.org.uk which featured a number of 
collections and advised how to take care of one’s own collection at home. 
The HCT’s Collections Development Policy 2015-2020 which guides 
decisions relating to the acquisition and disposal of objects relevant to the 

1

Agenda Item 2

http://www.lovecollecting.org.uk/


 

 

Borough and other parts of the country. The Policy contains a number of 
documents that all museums are required to retain for their Museum 
Accreditation.  
 
Two ‘Big Themes’ were to be launched this year, ‘Jane Austen’ and ‘Royal 
Blood’ which would tie in nicely with the celebrations of the Queen’s 90th 
Birthday this year. 
 
Social media was increasing, with HCT gaining 2,300 ‘likes’ on FaceBook, 
and the Museum page continued to be updated by the Curator with news 
from the Twitter feed operated by the museum’s site team and run by One 
Community. 
 
The prominence of the museum on the High Street had promoted the team 
to smarten up its appearance. Hampshire County Council, together with 
Eastleigh Borough Council, was funding the project to repaint it white/cream 
with pale purple features alongside a few remedial repair works in March 
2016. 
 
The Chair thanked Erica for a very informative report as always and, on 
behalf of Members, proffered their congratulations on her new appointment 
at Bletchley Park. 
 
It was AGREED that the report be noted. 

 
3. VENUE PLAN 
 
 Erica Munro, Curator, went through the Venue Plan in detail, highlighting 

that the Hampshire Cultural Trust (HCT) championed world-class culture 
and exhibits to showcase, connect and empower Hampshire’s creative 
economy. This independent charity worked collaboratively to bring 
organisations, people and ideas together for greater impact. It was an 
exciting time for culture in the country and delivering against these key 
objectives would ensure that the HCT and individual venues like the 
museum would continue to contribute to the overarching strategic 
framework of the primary funders. 
 
Erica Munro handed over to Janet Wildman (HCT) who had been 
developing areas for the Plan. Janet went through the various headings 
explaining how the venue plan would evolve. It was divided into a number of 
key actions including: Public Programmes (Exhibitions); Learning and 
Engagement; Local Community; Older People; Families; Big themes and 
Events; Collections; Local Priorities; Business Development; and Venue 
Management, with sub headings linked to HCT goals and Eastleigh Borough 
Council outcomes as set out in Appendix 1 to the report. 
 
It was AGREED that the Venue Plan be noted. 

 

2



 

 

4. BUDGET REPORT 
 
 Tim Kelly, Hampshire Cultural Trust (HCT) advised that the report provided 

an update on the 2015/16 budget up to the end of December 2015. There 
were no exceptions to report and the end of year would be 31 March 2016. 
A breakdown of the budget was provided in Appendix 1 to the report, and 
the headlines reflected those in the Venue Plan, which made it easier to 
understand where money was being spent and how the museum directly 
benefitted. 
 
It was AGREED that the 2015/16 budget update be noted.  

 
5. SCHOOLS' SERVICE UPDATE 
 
 Janet Wildman, the Community Engagement and Learning Officer (CELO), 

introduced her report which updated Members on the Schools’ Service at 
the museum. 
 
She advised that it was mainly primary and junior schools that had become 
target users of the museum under Key Stage 1 and 2 of the National 
Curriculum (NC). Schools would only make a visit outside of the classroom 
– or book a workshop in the school – if it helped deliver the requirements of 
the new Primary National Curriculum, so the process of devising, promoting 
and delivering an offer for schools began with linking those areas of the NC 
with subject matter at the museum.  
 
Due to the size of the museum and relatively poor facilities (only one toilet) 
and space to accommodate a whole class, the museum appealed more to 
local schools, with its main target being those within walking distance. 
 
The museum had regular bookings from six schools within walking distance, 
with a few schools outside walking distance that were also regular visitors or 
regular bookers of outreach sessions, in particular, the session on fossil and 
dinosaur themes became popular during ‘Dinofest’ event. 
 
On the whole, pupil visit numbers were up on previous years with the 
exception of 2013/14 which saw a large number of WW1 projects taking 
place. These figures were comparatively favourable with other small 
museums locally which did not have a collection (such as Toys and 
Prehistory) with a strong link to the new curriculum. 
 
As well as planning for schools, the CELO provided or helped the Curator to 
plan for a range of other activities for non-school audiences with events 
such as ‘Hands-on-Holidays’; Museum ‘Make and Do Days’; Special 
Sundays; Families with under 5’s; and Special Events. 
 
Members welcomed the update and were delighted that the museum 
assisted with the education of young people in the Borough. Councillor Kyrle 
suggested that the museum contact the Mayoralty team at the Council who 
had access to lots of memorabilia, including robes, photos, and Maces 

3



 

 

which would be fantastic for Key Stage 2 children. They could also have a 
visit from the Mayor and learn about democracy and council. Councillor 
Bicknell also added that the railway had great heritage and this was 
something that could be looked into once the restored steam locomotive 
was up and running. Members of the HCT welcomed these suggestions with 
enthusiasm. 
 
The Chair thanked Janet Wildman for a very informative report. 
 
It was AGREED that the report be noted. 

 
6. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 It was AGREED that the next meeting would be held at the Windmill, 

Windmill Lane, Bursledon on Tuesday 5 July at 12.00 noon, with the 
Windmill Museum Joint Management Committee starting first at 10.30 am. 

 
M5621 

4



1 
 

  
  

  

Committee: EASTLEIGH MUSEUM 
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 5 July 2016 

Title of Report: CURATOR’S REPORT 

Author: Christine Taylor 

  
Purpose: 
  
 
  
 
1.  Providing a Welcoming and Well Maintained Museum 
 

1.1 Museum Service Delivery 
 
The Curator, Erica Monro, left the Hampshire Cultural Trust for a new position at the end 
of March. The role has been covered in the interim by Christine Taylor, Curator of Natural 
Sciences. Interviews have taken place and Cerian Trevan was appointed. She started new 
role with the Hampshire Cultural Trust on 20 June and was introduced to One Community 
staff on 21 June. 
 
Work has been carried out to smarten up the exterior of the building and to make it more 
prominent. The building has been painted in a cream and the pillars and features in purple. 
The roundel featuring William Booth, the founder of the Salvation Army, which provides a 
link to the building’s former use, has also been repainted. The interior of the porch and the 
fire exit doors have been repainted. 
 
The Collections team provided a training course for the volunteers on cleaning the 
collections on open display. Following on from this the volunteers have done an excellent 
job of cleaning the main areas of display. 
 
Chairs that were no longer required by the museum had been stacked up outside the 
museum in the passageway at the rear of the building. These and other materials that had 
been left in cupboards and no longer needed have been brought back to Chilcomb House 
for disposal.  
  

Report on activities at or relating to Eastleigh Museum 
Covering period March to June 2016 

5

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

1.2 Visitor Figures 
 
Visitor figures at the beginning of the year were up at the beginning of the year and slightly 
down in April in May. The ‘Our Town’ exhibition of historic photographs has been very well 
received locally and it is hoped that Royal Blood and the activities planned to accompany it 
will help to draw people in. 
 
 
 
 

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals 

 
2009 – 
2010  

2179 1864 1521 2574 2693 2046 2401 1714 1300 3087 3598 3236 28,213 

 
2010 – 
2011 

2372 1567 1780 2493 3205 2091 2349 1881 1151 1236 2109 1759 24,041 

 
2011 – 
2012 

1713 1408 1516 2022 2322 1805 1542 1351 1297 1140 1550 1321 18,987 

 
2012 – 
2013 

923 163 1153 1131 1640 1213 1153 2018 962 1094 1576 
 

1236 
 

14,252 

 
2013 – 
2014 

1470 1523 1279 1405 2461 1571 1910 1788 1139 1538 1692 1738 19,514 

2014 – 
2015  

1926 3052 1561 1961 1465 1501 1470 1382 850 905 1188 1078 18,339 

2015-
2016 

1655 1435 1431 1674 1434 1248 1746 1876 1310 1032 1208 1122 17171 

2016-
2017 

1367 1236            

 
 
2.  Hosting Special Temporary Exhibitions and Related Events 
 
2.1 Artwork by Mouth and Foot Painters (26 March to 28 May) 
An exhibition of stunning artworks by mouth and foot painters from across the globe. 
Hampshire Wardrobe agreed to manage the sales of any artwork for this exhibition. The 
sale of artwork is an area that needs looking at for future exhibitions. 
 

 
 

  
Artwork by Tom Yendyll, a 
mouth and foot painting artist 
and a Board Member of the 
International Association of 
Mouth and Foot Painting Artists. 

6



3 
 

 
2.2 Our Town – Historic Photographs of Eastleigh   
(11 June to 23 July) 
This exhibition draws on the extensive photographic archive held by the Hampshire 

Cultural Trust. Forty images were selected and for interpretation by Eastleigh Museum 

volunteer, Daniel Malloy. They depicted images of Eastleigh Town Centre and around the 

Borough over the last 100 years.   

 

. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
2.3  Royal Blood: Heads and Tails Exhibition (30 July – 26 September) 
 
The Big Theme for 2016 is ‘Royal Blood’. Visitors will be able to explore the past 2000 
years of English Royalty through objects, interactives and a ‘Royal Bloop’ horrible history 
style trail for families. The show will include royal tales of resolution and revolution, dignity 
and despair. There will be a special focus on the Victorian era and the reign of Queen 
Victoria for Eastleigh visitors. 
 
 
2.4 Other Events 
 
All Creatures Great and Small (2 June) 
A day of nature and geology themed family 
activities provided by Natural Science 
Learning.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Picture Palace, Eastleigh’s cinema in Market Street c1925. 
 

7



4 
 

 
Volunteer Fair (4 June) 
A day hosted by the museum to present volunteering opportunities across the region. 
 

 

 
3. Caring for collections, promoting access, providing specialist knowledge & 

advice   
 

3.1 Caring for collections  
In March two members of the Collections Team met Eastleigh Museum volunteers to run 
through a cleaning schedule and discuss what the volunteers can do to keep the open 
displays looking good. A further visit in the month by the team was made to check 
problems with floorboards, which were re-fixed, and the manager was advised to report 
the problem to SSE.  
 
In April the tiny tags (which monitor environmental conditions) were downloaded. The 
Apprentice case was tidied and cleaned and improvements to tidy up the local studies 
area was discussed.   
 
In May the front of a display case was removed to access objects for research by a local 
resident, old chairs and materials no longer required by the museum were brought back to 
Chilcomb House for disposal.  
 
3.2 Promoting access to collections 
The Love Collecting exhibition was inspired by a website that was created by our Curator 
of Digital Collections who sadly left the Trust at the end of the year. Several of our curators 
and conservators contributed material. The natural sciences were particularly well 
represented and the Curator of Natural Sciences helped to install and take down the 
exhibition.  
 
In May the team filled the holes in the walls of the exhibition gallery and gave them a fresh 
coat of paint. Two members of the Collections Team stepped in to install Our Town which 
had already been prepared by the acting Area Curator who was on sick leave. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Framed photographs of Eastleigh ready for installation 

8



5 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
3.3 Providing specialist knowledge and advice 
It has been the turn of our specialists in archaeology and history to work on the Big Theme 
during this period. The Royal Blood exhibition that will be installed in Eastleigh at the end 
of July was written by the Curator of Hampshire Archaeology. The exhibition will explore 
Hampshire’s links to the birth of kingship and its connection with the history of monarchy 
ever since. It will highlight the struggles for power that took place locally on many 
occasions, but also that the county was a place for ceremony and recreation. In Eastleigh 
the exhibition will explore the relevance of the subject to its own location by focusing on 
the Victorian era.  
 
The exhibition will give us the opportunity to show objects in the community museums that 
are unsuitable for long term display. Many of these have already been conserved in our 
conservation studios in Winchester and further work will be done before the exhibition 
comes to Eastleigh. 
 
When Hampshire Cultural Trust was formed the Hampshire Finds Liaison Officer, funded 
by the national Portable Antiquities Scheme, joined the Collections Team and moved to 
Chilcomb House in Winchester.  Quite regularly, the Finds Liaison Officer, Katie Hinds, 
identifies and records archaeological objects that have been found in Eastleigh Borough 
by metal detectorists and other members of the public. During the period covered by this 
report, Katie has processed a medieval/post-medieval (c.1350-1650) copper alloy annular 
buckle frame from Botley. 
 
 
 
 

Installation of ‘Our Town’ photographic exhibition 

9



6 
 

 
4.  Inspiring Learning and Community Engagement  

 
4.1  Formal Education Provision 

 
Schools: There were 2 school workshops in the museum for Nightingale Primary, Year 3, 
doing Our Town in the Past (2 classes, 55 pupils). Bookings are in place for June and July 
as well. The school numbers for the whole financial year 15/16 were 20 sessions, 579 
pupils, which is the same as previous years despite changes to the curriculum. The CELO 
attended the Hampshire Primary History Teachers’ Conferences in March, leading 
workshops for 68 teachers on working with artefacts, and promoting our schools service. 
 
 
Families: The CELO ran a drop-in led family workshop for half term on 18 February. It 
was a local history session called Time Detectives and got families exploring real 
documents, maps, photos and objects to piece together clues about Eastleigh’s past. 63 
people turned up and feedback was excellent, including comments such as: 
“The kids really enjoyed playing Eastleigh Victorian happy Families and making the trains.” 
“I enjoyed learning about the history of Eastleigh, dressing up, and being a different 
person.” 
“All excellent. Helpful for children’s school work and fascinating for me.” 
 
 
 
             
             
             
             
             
             
          
 
 
 
 
 
The CELO, assisted by 2 One Community volunteers, ran another led-drop-in for the 
Easter holiday on 7 April. 24 people enjoyed designing their own commemorative mugs for 
the royal birthday, taking inspiration from the ones in our collections, and using porcelain 
paints to achieve some stunning results. They also made union flags from their component 
parts, started off some bunting for the big day around the museum and undertook a range 
of hands-on activities with royal commemorative pieces from 1887 to the present and with 
items showing changes in design over the queen’s 9 decades. The activity benefitted from 
Hampshire Futures funding for family learning. Feedback from participants was full of 
comments like “We had a wonderful time”, “Great day ” and “Awesome!” 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

10



7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Older People: Eastleigh has again benefitted from HCC Hampshire Futures funding bid 
for by the CELO to do a ‘Museums for Seniors’ programme in the borough. Agincare 
residents at Fernhill Court, Rowans Court and Laburnum House, and members of the 
Bursledon Café group of the Alzheimer’s Society, enjoyed reminiscence workshops on 
themes of Old vs New, the Old Corner Shop and Spring Cleaning in the Past. The 
difference between the quiet lounges at the start of the sessions and the buzzing, 
animated atmosphere by the end, makes these workshops very rewarding. Many of the 45 
participants at the 3 workshops could not complete the feedback forms, but those who 
could made comments such as: 
“I’ve had a happy afternoon.” 
“A very interesting afternoon. A chance for everyone to be involved and recall old 
memories. Thank you.” 
“Very interesting and interactive. Nice to chat together about things of the past.” 
“A very good chance to re-live past experiences and hear of other people’s past 
experiences.” 
 
4.2  Community Engagement and Learning 
 
In line with the Venue Plan aim of widening participation, a programme of activities for a 
range of audiences was offered over the period February to June. 

   
The CELO, Janet Wildman retired from the Hampshire Cultural Trust at the end of April. 
Elements of her post have been taken on by Rebecca Parrant, Cultural Engagement 
Manager for Schools 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



8 
 

5.  Marketing and Management 
 
5.1 Printed material 
A new edition of What’s On covering the period May to 
August and featuring Eastleigh Museum was delivered at the 
beginning of April. 12,500 copies were printed and it is now 
in circulation via our distributors, Brochure Connect, to TICs, 
libraries, museums, accommodation providers, educational 
establishments, attractions, arts centres, theatres etc. 
 
5.2 Online marketing 
The e-newsletter Museums Monthly, featuring exhibitions 
and events from Eastleigh Museum, has been to sign ups on 
a new database. Subscribers now number over 2,500. We 
have promoted “Artwork by Foot and Mouth Painters”, Right 
Royal Fun and Art Demo Days (amongst other things) both 
on Social Media and the website.  
  
5.3 Research 
Postcodes are now routinely collected from visitors at on an 
ongoing basis. These are profiled annually using Mosaic 
software and provide ongoing information on which groups of 
people are using and not using our services and how 
individual visitor profiles compare to the local area.  This 
feeds into the service and marketing planning processes.  

  
 
 
5.4 Social Media 
HCT Facebook now has over 2,600 “likes” and twitter nearly 3,800 followers. Events at 
Eastleigh are promoted on both social media sites on an ongoing basis . 
. The events promoted recently include the following: 
 

7 April Eastleigh Easter Activities (Mug painting) 

3 May Eastleigh Mouth and Foot Painting Artists 

16 May Eastleigh Our Town 

16 May Eastleigh Creatures Great and Small 

30 May Eastleigh Creatures Great and Small 

 
The Eastleigh Museum Facebook page is currently being updated by the Marketing Team, 
with news stories being picked up by and from the Eastleigh Museum twitter feed, 
operated by the museum’s site team, run by One Community. 
 
5.5 Big Themes 
 
Royal Blood 
 
The Royal Blood website including sign up area and What’s Ons for all upcoming events is 
now live. Eastleigh Museum is getting Heads and Tales in July – will update in next JMC 
report. However, Royal Blood Facebook and Twitter accounts are posting and 
tweeting  interesting facts in addition to promoting each individual event at each venue and 
will trail BBB at Gosport in due course. 

12



9 
 

 
75,000 DL RB leaflets have been produced promoting all key exhibitions. 48,000 of these 
are being professionally distributed by Brochure Connect across Hampshire and the 
bordering counties (Berkshire, West Sussex, East Dorset, Wiltshire and Surrey) including 
date specific “blitzing” in key areas prior to regional events (including in Eastleigh for 
Heads and Tales.) Eastleigh Museum received its pack last week ready for launch, 
including leaflets and posters. Eastleigh and its Royal Peg Trail is also mentioned in the 
Royal Blood Family leaflet circulated around Hampshire and to schools. 
 
A PR campaign has been embarked upon with our agency Carswell Gould. This includes 
Releases at the launch of major exhibitions (and also a co-ordinated Press event at the 
Stephen & Matilda re-enactment on 9 July alongside our partners Winchester Cathedral 
and The Great Hall. 
 
We have taken out Press adverts in the Basingstoke Gazette, including a feature wrap and 
strip, (we should also receive some editorial support alongside this paid advertising space) 
in Schools Out (May half term), Primary Times (back page summer half term), Defence of 
the Realm magazine and The View. 
 
For the first time this year our big theme has a media partnership with Wave FM. This 
includes On Air mentions of our events during round ups of what’s on locally (at least 3 
mentions per week for each of our 4 featured events), 2 features in e-shots to their 
customer database, a webpage on wave105.com (over 330,000 visitors per week), and 
specific targeted messaging via their Social Media channels throughout the partnership. 
We will ensure that Eastleigh gets a mention on air when Head and Tales has opened. 
 
Finally, Royal Blood signs have been created for use around several key sites as well as 
pull ups for permanent use in some sites and some for loans/to be moved around to 
different locations necessary.  
. 

 
Jane Austen 2017 
 
2017 will mark the 200th anniversary of Jane Austen’s death and Hampshire Cultural Trust 
is working with Jane Austen’s House Museum as well as many other partners across the 
county to celebrate Jane’s creativity and talent.  
  

Christine Taylor 
June 2016 

 
 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH MUSEUM / BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES  
 

05 JULY 2016 
 

FINANCIAL REPORT AND REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16 

 
 

Introduction 
 
In accordance with the agreement between Hampshire County Council and Eastleigh Borough Council, the net cost of running Bursledon 
Windmill and Eastleigh Museum is shared between the partner authorities.   This report provides an update on the budget for 2015/16 and 
2016/17 (Appendix 1) and asks the committee to note the contents of the update, approve the budget for 2016/17 and decide if it wishes to 
take up BDO’s offer of a limited financial review.  The report recommends that the committee: 
 

1. Notes the actuals for 2015/16 and 2016/17 
2. Approves the budget for 2016/17 and 
3. Does not agree to take up the advertised services from BDO 

 
 
Description of  2015/16 Budget 
 
The 2015/16 budget for Bursledon Windmill and Eastleigh Museum provided in Appendix 1 reflects proposed partner contributions as follows:  
 
1. Venue Management - salaries 

Includes venue management and curatorship salaries and on costs. 
 

2. Venue Management - costs 
This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and maintenance cost based on the average costs 
during 11/12, 12/13 and 13/14.  Due to annual fluctuations in property and maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance 
will be higher as works need to be carried out and in other years the burden will be lighter.  Hampshire County Council will continue to pick 
up any such overspend in years where more work needs to be done. 

15

A
genda Item

 4



 
3. Public Programmes (exhibitions) 

This charge contributes towards the cost of the Exhibitions team and includes display development, transport, setting up and taking down, 
cases for local exhibitions, insurance, marketing and research relating to new exhibitions. 

 
4. Collections  

This charge contributes to the care, curatorship and management of all collections relating to Bursledon Windmill and Eastleigh Museum, 
organised within the disciplines of Archaeology, The Arts, Natural Sciences and Social & Industrial History. The Service will continue to 
store, manage and provide public access to these important collections and make them available to the local community in support of 
exhibitions, displays and activities. 
 

5. Better Life Chances 
The Better Life Chances team is responsible for the design, creation, marketing and delivery of participatory learning sessions for young 
people in school and family groups, as well as other collections learning activity in both informal and formal settings, both within the 
museum and beyond in to the community.  The team will place greater emphasis on work with hard to reach people in the specialism of 
Older People, Young People, Schools and Community. 
 

6. Business Development 
Business development and marketing functions form the bulk of this cost. Marketing functions include visitor research, targeted marketing 
campaigns, museum and What’s On leaflets, posters, website development, email marketing, advertising and media relations leading to 
free editorial and promotions. Business development provides strategic guidance and direction, monitors performance, levers funding 
from external sources including Renaissance and Arts Council, and liaises closely with senior councillors and officers where appropriate. 
 

These budget headings reflect the headings in the Venue Plans, making it easier to understand where money is being spent and how Bursledon 
Windmill and Eastleigh Museum directly benefit. The budget has been modelled to include staff increments and the 1% pay award. They also 
include more accurate projections in relation to VAT costs, the financial activity which will be included in the trading arm and projected income 
from gift aid (where applicable).  
 
In addition, we intend to report from time to time on external investment secured and/applied for, and in kind support generously received 
from volunteers, trustees, businesses and other individuals and/or organisations.   

16



 
Figures shown for 2016/17 are not end of year figures.   
 

 
Letter from BDO to the Committee 
 

A letter from BDO is attached.  This is advertising a limited assurance financial review service to the committee.  The audits that BDO carried 
out in the past on behalf of the Audit Commission, for small bodies are no longer necessary.  Audits used to cost the committees several 
hundred pounds per annum.  Hampshire Cultural Trust, as a charitable body, will submit audited accounts for the trust on an annual basis.  It is 
not clear what real benefit there would be to the committee of such a review.    
 

Recommendations 
  It is recommended that the committee: 

1) notes the 2015/16 and 2016/17 budget updates. 
2) approves the 2016/17 budget 
3) does not take up DBO’s advertisement of financial services 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Appendix 1 
 

Eastleigh Museum 
 
Expenditure 

Budget 
2015/16 

£ 

Actuals 
2015/16 

£ 

Budget 
2016/17 

3 

Actuals 
31 May  

£ 

 Bursledon Windmill 
 
Expenditure 

Budget 
2015/16 
£ 

Actuals 
2015/16 
£ 

Budget 
2016/17 

£ 

Actuals 
31 May 

£ 

Venue - salaries 9,663 9,648 9,759 1,626  Venue - salaries 31,301 26,763 27,030 4,505 

Venue Management* 19,264 16,605 18,061 2,047  Venue Management* 7,500 6,383 6,500 1,279 

Public Programmes 18,433 18,433 18,433 3,072  Public Programmes 4,608 4,608 4,608 768 

Collections 45,421 45,421 45,421 7,570  Collections 11,355 11,355 11,355 1,892 

Better Life Chances 24,431 24,431 24,431 4,072  Better Life Chances 24,431 24,431 24,431 4,072 

Business Dev 22,577 22,577 22,577 3,762  Business Dev 22,577 22,577 22,577 3,762 

Total Expenditure 139,789 137,115 138,682 22,149  Total Expenditure 101,772 96,117 96,501 16,278 

Income 6,695 5,317 5,919 0  Income 6,695 5,791 5,716 236 

Net Expenditure 133,094 131,789 132,763 22,149  Net Expenditure 95,077 90,326 90,785 16,042 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total Net Expenditure Budget 
2015/16 

£ 

Actuals 
2015/16 

£ 

Budget 
2016/17 

£ 

Actuals 31 
May 

£ 

Eastleigh Museum 133,094 131,789 132,763 22,149 

Bursledon Windmill 95,077 90,326 90,785 16,042 

Total Net Expenditure 228,171 222,115 223,548 38,191 

     

Income Budget 
2015/16 

£ 

Actuals 
2015/16 

£ 

Budget 
2016/17 

 £ 

Actuals 31 
May 

£ 

Hampshire Cultural Trust 
EBC Eastleigh Museum  
EBC Windmill 
BPC Windmill 

167,771 
30,000 
27,728 

2,672 

161,715 
30,000 
27,728 

2,672 

167,169 
30,000 
23,707 

2,672 

22,149 
0 
0 
0 

Total Income 228,171 222,115 223,548 22,149 

 
Excludes all central costs provided within HCT such as Finance, HR, IT, Administration and Legal Services which equates to an estimated cost of 
£36,431. 
*This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and maintenance costs based on the average actual costs 
during 11/12, 12/13 and 13/14 (due to annual fluctuations in property and maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance will 
be higher as works need to be carried out and in other years the burden will be lighter.  HCT/HCC will continue to pick up any overspend in 
years when the work needs to be done. 

19



 

20



21



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Curator's Report
	4 Finance Report
	JMC BDO Letter Financial Report June 2016


